
Page 1 of 1 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
The Town of Ridgeland 

      PLANNING COMMISSION 
                                             Monday, December 9, 2024, 5:30 P.M. 

    Town Hall, Council Chambers, 1 Town Hall, Ridgeland, SC 29936 
 

STATEMENT OF MEDIA NOTIFICATION: “In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, all local 
media were duly notified of the time, date, place, and agenda of this meeting.” 

 
I. Call to Order: Pledge of Allegiance by Chairman Frankie Denmark 

II. Approval of Minutes: 

November 12, 2024 

III. Public Comment Time (3 min)  

IV. Projects:  

1. The applicant and property owner, Amy Bowman of Bowman Family, LLC, submitted a petition for 
annexation and designation of zoning for one parcel located at the intersection of Sweet William and Old 
House Road contiguous to the Town of Ridgeland’s jurisdictional boundary. 
TMS #063-39-04-008 in Jasper County, South Carolina.  
The property consists of approximately 1.82 acres.  
 
Planning Commissions role: Advisory to Council  
 Action needed: Recommendation to Council  
 

2. The applicant and developer, George Ward of Brighton Development, LLC, together with the property owner, 
Marlon Sheffield, submitted a petition for annexation and designation of zoning for one parcel located at the 
intersection of Smiths Crossing and South Jacob Smart Boulevard contiguous to the Town of Ridgeland’s 
jurisdictional boundary.  
TMS #063-20-03-001 in Jasper County, South Carolina.  
The property consists of approximately 25 acres. 
 
Planning Commissions role: Advisory to Council  
Action needed: Recommendation to Council 

 
V. Staff Comments:  

1. Update from Staff – Comprehensive Plan. Upcoming council workshop with Benchmark scheduled for Thursday, 
December 19, 2024, at 3 PM to discuss current plan updates and listening session.  
 

VI. Board Member Comments 

VII. Adjournment 



MEETING MINUTES 
The Town of Ridgeland 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Tuesday, November 12, 2024, 5:30 P.M. 

Town Hall, Council Chambers, 1 Town Hall, Ridgeland, SC 29936 
 

 

Planning Commissioners in attendance:  

Frankie Denmark (Chairman), Ralph Rodina, Scott May, and Joss Mohr (Linda Morrison absent) 

Town of Ridgeland Staff:  

Dennis Averkin (Town Administrator), Aaron Rucker (Director of Planning and Community 
Development) 

I. Call to order: Pledge of Allegiance by Chairman Frankie Denmark 
 
Chairman Denmark called the meeting to order at 5:30pm 
 

II. Approval of the Minutes: None presented. 
 

III. Public Comment: None received. 
 

IV. Projects: 

The applicant, Chris Dennison, is requesting a map amendment to rezone 2.23 acres of 
property located at 10213 S. Jacob Smart Boulevard (TMS# 063-08-03-003) from T3 
Neighborhood General to T4 Neighborhood Core.   

 
Planning Director, Aaron Rucker, explained the Badcock Furniture store was closing and the 
applicant was requesting T4 zoning to allow resale of the property for future retail uses. The 
request appeared consistent with the 2017 comprehensive plan and would allow for a range 
of uses that are more compatible in the area and present further opportunities for retail 
redevelopment along a key corridor and entry point into town. There was also discussion 
and general agreement that contiguous properties along the corridor might also be rezoned 
to T4 in the future.  
 
Commissioners asked the applicant if the property where to be sold, what those future uses 
might be. The applicant answered that the property is being marketed for retail uses. 
 
Chairman Mr. Denmark allowed public comment on the agenda item.  
 
Motion: Commissioner May made a motion to approve the request of a map amendment to 
rezone 2.23 acres of property located at 10213 S. Jacob Smart Boulevard (TMS# 063-08-03-
003) from T3 Neighborhood General to T4 Neighborhood Core.  The motion was seconded 
by commissioner Mohr. The motion passed unanimously.  
 



MEETING MINUTES 
The Town of Ridgeland 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Tuesday, November 12, 2024, 5:30 P.M. 

Town Hall, Council Chambers, 1 Town Hall, Ridgeland, SC 29936 
 
 
 
The request is forwarded with a recommendation of approval to be heard before the 
Town of Ridgeland Council Meeting. The Town of Ridgeland Council will hear the first 
reading on November 21, 2024, and second reading on December 5, 2024. 
  

V. Staff Comments:  
 
Update from Staff – Comprehensive Plan. Reminder of upcoming workshop with 
Benchmark scheduled for Wednesday, November 20, 2024, to discuss current plan 
updates.  
 

VI. Adjournment 
Motion was made by Commissioner May and seconded by Commissioner Mohr. 



Town of Ridgeland Planning Commission 
Staff Report 
Aaron C. Rucker, Director of Planning and Community Development 
 
 
 

1 Subject: Annexation and Rezoning 
 
The applicant and property owner, Amy Bowman of Bowman Family, LLC, submitted a petition for annexation 
and designation of zoning (rezoning) for one parcel located at the intersection of Sweet William and Old House 
Road contiguous to the Town of Ridgeland’s jurisdictional boundary. The property can further be identified as 
follows:  

• Bowman Family LLC (TMS #063-39-04-008) in Jasper County, South Carolina. The property consists 
of approximately 1.82 acres.  

 
Annexation: The sole owner and applicant has requested that the one parcel described above be annexed into 
the limits of the Town of Ridgeland.   
 
Proposed Zoning: Contingent with annexation, the applicant has requested that the parcel be zoned “T4-
Neighborhood Core.” T4, Neighborhood Core, represents a low intensity mixed-use district primarily in the form 
of secessional residential fabric. A wide range of building types exist in T4, including, but not limited to, 
rowhouses, corner stores, and single family attached and detached housing. Single-family detached housing is 
typically set back from the front property line to allow for porch and fence frontage, while attached housing 
maintains a front stoop frontage.  
 
Permitted uses: 
By right: flex building, apartment building, row house, duplex house, courtyard house, live/work unit, bungalow, 
sideyard house, cottage, bed & breakfast (up to 5 rooms), inn (up to 12 rooms), office building, retail building, 
display gallery, house, accessory unit, open-market building, bus shelter, fountain or public art, playground, 
library, religious assembly, childcare center, fire station, elementary school, police station, funeral home. 
 
By warrant: restaurant, movie theater, live theater, museum, surface parking lot, greenhouse, kennel, electric 
substation, cemetery, medical clinic, high school, mixed use block.  
  
Current Zoning [Jasper County Zoning]: The parcel is currently zoned RES (Residential) per the Jasper 
County zoning map.  
 
Current Land Use: The parcel is classified as “Rural commercial” by the Jasper County Assessor’s Office and 
is vacant.   
 
Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The parcel is located within the “intended growth” sector. Intended growth 
locations can support substantial mixed-use development by proximity to regional thoroughfares. Moreover, 
annexation brings this property into the town’s jurisdiction otherwise under county regulations in an area 
surrounded by properties previously annexed into the town’s municipal boundary.     
 
Utilities: Water exists along Sweet William Road adjacent to the property to serve future development. Sewer 
exists along Bees Creek Road and is not immediately adjacent to the property, likely meaning septic would be 
needed.  
 
Development Agreement:  
Not applicable. 
 
 
 



2 Staff Assessment 
 
Contiguity to land already under the town’s jurisdiction has been established. The adjacent properties are zoned 
T3, Neighborhood General. Allowing T4 at this node of Sweet William Road and Old House Road intersection 
is very reasonable. Furthermore, the sole property owner is petitioning for annexation, with a request for T4 
zoning expressing an interest in establishing new office space.  
 
The 2017 Town of Ridgeland Comprehensive plan describes the parcel as located within the “intended growth” 
sector. The request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
3 Planning Commissions Role 
 
The Planning Commission has the duty to provide a recommendation to the Town Council any needed changes 
in the zoning ordinance and the map of the town, as well as the subdivision regulations, official maps, and other 
codes, ordinances and controls related to the municipality's development. The powers and duties of the Planning 
Commission are outlined in the South Carolina Local Government Comprehensive Planning Enabling Act of 
1994. 

 
The Planning Commission shall make one of the following recommendations to aid in the Council’s review and 
decision:  

1. Recommend as submitted. 

2. Recommend with the following recommendations/considerations.  

3. Recommend denial (if Planning Commission recommends denial, the reasoning for denial should be noted.)  

 
 
 
 
 

 













Town of Ridgeland Planning Commission 
Staff Report 
Aaron C. Rucker, Director of Planning and Community Development 
 
 
 

1 Subject: Annexation and Rezoning 
 
The applicant and developer, George Ward of Brighton Development, LLC, together with the property owner, 
Marlon Sheffield, submitted a petition for annexation and designation of zoning (rezoning) for one parcel located 
at the intersection of Smiths Crossing and South Jacob Smart Boulevard contiguous to the Town of Ridgeland’s 
jurisdictional boundary. The property can further be identified as follows:  

• SHEFFIELD MARLON D & JANET P (TMS #063-20-03-001) in Jasper County, South Carolina. The 
property consists of approximately 25 acres.  

 
Annexation: The sole owner and applicant has requested that the one parcel described above be annexed into 
the limits of the Town of Ridgeland.   
 
Proposed Zoning: Contingent with annexation, the applicant has requested that the parcel be zoned “T4-
Neighborhood Core.” T4, Neighborhood Core, represents a low intensity mixed-use district primarily in the form 
of secessional residential fabric. A wide range of building types exist in T4, including, but not limited to, 
rowhouses, corner stores, and single family attached and detached housing. Single-family detached housing is 
typically set back from the front property line to allow for porch and fence frontage, while attached housing 
maintains a front stoop frontage.  
 
Permitted uses: 
By right: flex building, apartment building, row house, duplex house, courtyard house, live/work unit, bungalow, 
sideyard house, cottage, bed & breakfast (up to 5 rooms), inn (up to 12 rooms), office building, retail building, 
display gallery, house, accessory unit, open-market building, bus shelter, fountain or public art, playground, 
library, religious assembly, childcare center, fire station, elementary school, police station, funeral home. 
 
By warrant: restaurant, movie theater, live theater, museum, surface parking lot, greenhouse, kennel, electric 
substation, cemetery, medical clinic, high school, mixed use block.  
  
Current Zoning [Jasper County Zoning]: The parcel is currently zoned RP (Rural Preservation) per the Jasper 
County zoning map.  
 
Current Land Use: The parcel is classified as “Rural acres” by the Jasper County Assessor’s Office and is 
vacant.   
 
Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The parcel is located within the “intended growth” sector. Intended growth 
locations can support substantial mixed-use development by proximity to regional thoroughfares. Moreover, 
annexation brings this property into the town’s jurisdiction otherwise under county regulations in an area 
surrounded by properties previously annexed into the town’s municipal boundary.     
 
Utilities: Water exists along Smiths Crossing and Brandon Cove adjacent to the property to potentially serve 
future development. Sewer exists along Smiths Crossing but is not immediately adjacent to the property and 
would either need to be extended or a larger service connection provided.  
 
Development Agreement:  
Not applicable. 
 
 
 



2 Staff Assessment 
 
Contiguity to land already under the town’s jurisdiction has been established. The adjacent properties are zoned 
T3, Neighborhood General and T4, Neighborhood Core. Allowing T4 at this busy node of Smiths Crossing and 
South Jacob Smart Boulevard is reasonable. Furthermore, the sole property owner is petitioning for annexation 
and requesting T4 zoning expressing an interest in constructing a medical clinic, retail, and new office spaces. 
Medical clinics are allowed by warrant, which this request should simultaneously consider.    
 
The 2017 Town of Ridgeland Comprehensive plan describes the parcel as located within the “intended growth” 
sector. Moreover, the US-17 South/Greys Highway South paragraph within the plan reads, “This area presents a 
significant opportunity for commercial development and redevelopment serving a regional base, with limited 
prospects in the area of Exit 18 due to the presence of larger land holdings with conservation easements.” The 
proposed annexation would allow for a range of uses not currently present in town and present further 
opportunities for commercial redevelopment along a key corridor and entry point from points south. It appears 
the request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
3 Planning Commissions Role 
 
The Planning Commission has the duty to provide a recommendation to the Town Council any needed changes 
in the zoning ordinance and the map of the town, as well as the subdivision regulations, official maps, and other 
codes, ordinances and controls related to the municipality's development. The powers and duties of the 
Planning Commission are outlined in the South Carolina Local Government Comprehensive Planning Enabling 
Act of 1994. 

 
The Planning Commission shall make one of the following recommendations to aid in the Council’s review and 
decision:  

1. Recommend as submitted. 

2. Recommend with the following recommendations/considerations.  

3. Recommend denial (if Planning Commission recommends denial, the reasoning for denial should be 
noted.)  

 
 
 
 
 

 










	Planning Commission
	Town Hall, Council Chambers, 1 Town Hall, Ridgeland, SC 29936
	II. Approval of Minutes:
	November 12, 2024
	IV. Projects:
	1. The applicant and property owner, Amy Bowman of Bowman Family, LLC, submitted a petition for annexation and designation of zoning for one parcel located at the intersection of Sweet William and Old House Road contiguous to the Town of Ridgeland’s j...
	TMS #063-39-04-008 in Jasper County, South Carolina.
	The property consists of approximately 1.82 acres.
	Planning Commissions role: Advisory to Council
	Action needed: Recommendation to Council
	2. The applicant and developer, George Ward of Brighton Development, LLC, together with the property owner, Marlon Sheffield, submitted a petition for annexation and designation of zoning for one parcel located at the intersection of Smiths Crossing a...
	TMS #063-20-03-001 in Jasper County, South Carolina.
	The property consists of approximately 25 acres.
	Planning Commissions role: Advisory to Council
	Action needed: Recommendation to Council
	ANX-2024-01SR.pdf
	Aaron C. Rucker, Director of Planning and Community Development

	ANX-2024-02SR.pdf
	Aaron C. Rucker, Director of Planning and Community Development

	ANX-2024-02SR.pdf
	Aaron C. Rucker, Director of Planning and Community Development


